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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT
To the Members of Ethos Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

1. Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Ethos Limited (“the Company™). which comprise
the standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2019, and the standalone statement of profit and loss (including
other comprehensive income). standalone statement of changes in equity and standalone statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary
of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2019, and its profit and
other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

2. Basis for Opinion

= We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Respensibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

3. Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and. in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
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misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations. or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

. Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if. individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions. misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as

a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.
6. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(A)  As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government interms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(B)  Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpoeses of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The standalone balance sheet. the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis ot the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2019 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2019 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of'the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in

l “Annexure B”.
v
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g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule
|1 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

iii.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2019 on its
financial position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 36 to the standalone
financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

. The disclosures in the standalone financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings

in specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have
not been made in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year ended
31 March 2019.

(B) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section
197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under
Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under
Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Fitm's Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

Ad, Lo

Adhir Kapoor

Place: New Delhi Partner
Date: 04 May 2019 Membership No. 098297
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 6 (A) of the Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of
Ethos Limited on the accounts for the year ended 31 March 2019. We report that:

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details

and situation of fixed assets.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has physically verified its

(c)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

()

(vi)

movable fixed assets during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. As informed to us,
the discrepancies noticed on such verification were not material and have been properly adjusted in
the books of account.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
immovable property. Accordingly, para 3(i)(c) of the order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us. the inventories, except goods-in-transit,
have been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of
such verification is reasonable. As informed 1o us, the discrepancies noticed on verification between
the physical stocks and the book records were not material and have been appropriately adjusted in
books of account.

The Company has not granted any loans secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the register required under section 189 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act’). Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company has not provided any loan. guarantee or security as specified under section
185 of the Act, Further, the Company has complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in
relation to investment made.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provision of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the
rules framed there under where applicable, the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India as
applicable with regard to deposits accepted from the public. As informed to us, there have been no
proceedings before the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal and Reserve Bank
of India or any court or any other tribunal in this matter and no order has been passed by any of the
aforesaid authorities in this regard.

The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Act for the activities perforimed by the Company.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund. Employees’ State Insurance, Income tax, Goods and
Services Tax ("GST’). Duty of customs and other material statutory dues have generally been
regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us. no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of Provident Fund, Employees” State Insurance. Income tax, GST, Duty of customs and other material
statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2019 for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

L
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The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and Value
added tax since effective | July 2017, these statutory dues have been subsumed into Goods and
Services Tax.

Also refer note 36(vi) wherein it is explained that on account of the uncertainty with respect to the
applicability of the Hon'ble Supreme Court judgement dated 28 February 2019 on provident fund
matter. pending clarification from the department of PF. management has not recognized and
deposited any additional provident fund amount with respect to the period prior to 28 February 2019.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income tax, GST,
Sales tax. Service tax, Duty of excise. Duty of customs and Value added tax which have not been
deposited with the approptiate authorities on account of any dispute, except as mentioned below:

Name of the | Nature of Amount Amount Period to which | Forum where the
statute Dues disputed# deposited the amount dispute is pending
(Rs. in (Rs. in relates
lakhs) lakhs)
Income Tax | Income Tax 22.85 7.32 Assessment Year | Income tax Appellate
Act. 1961 2012-13 Tribunal
Income Tax | Income Tax 31.16 31.16 Assessment Year | Commissioner of
Act, 1961 2013-14 Income tax (Appeals)
Income Tax | Income Tax 52.02 52.02 Assessment Year | Commissioner of
Act, 1961 2014-15 [ncome tax (Appeals)
Finance Act, | CENVAT 485.53 170.00* Financial Year | Customs, Excise and
1904 C["Cdil 2008-09 to 2010- Sewice Tax Appe“ate
(including 11 Tribunal
penalty)
DVAT Act. | VAT 1.015.71 15.00 Financial  Year | Special Commissioner
2004 2013-14 Appea]

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

# Amounts as per demand order including interest and penalty, whichever indicated in the order
*Paid under protest by utilising the balance in Cenvat credit

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations given
to us. the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to its bankers or to any
financial institutions. The Company did not have any loans or borrowings from government and has
not issued any debentures during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the term loans taken by the Company has been applied for the purposes for
which they were obtained. As informed to us. the Company has not raised any moneys by way of
initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments).

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company and no fraud on
the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit
for the year.

%
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(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the managerial remuneration has been paid or provided by the Company in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and
188 of the Act where applicable and the details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Accordingly to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has duly complied with
the requirements of section 42 of the Act, in respect of preferential allotment of shares made during
the year. The Company has neither made any private placement of shares nor issued any fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year. The proceeds from issue of equity shares have been
used for the purposes for which the funds were raised.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly. paragraph 3(xv) of
the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be
registered under section 43-TA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration no.: 101248W/ W-100022

ol by

Adhir Kapoor
Place: New Delhi Partner
Date: 04 May 2019 Membership No.: 098297



BSR & Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the standalone financial statements of Ethos
Limited for the period ended 31 March 2019.

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Referred to
in paragraph 6(B)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Ethos Limited (“the
Company”) as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

[n our opinion, the Company has. in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2019,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
[nternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (the “Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets. the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter
referred to as “the Act™).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial controls. assessing the risk that a material weakness exists. and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufticient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

o
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Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration no.; 101248W/W-100022

Adhir Kapoo

Place: New Delhi Partner
Date: 04 May 2019 Membership No.: 098297

AL




Ethos Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019

Rupees in lakhs excepi share data, per share data ane widess oifierwive stafed)

As at Asar
Note 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property. plant and equipment 3 2,101.37 | 646 80
Capital work-in-progress 3 440,02 3683
Other intangible assets 4 5745 27.44
Intanmble assets under development 4 38121 -
Financial assets
- Investments 3 4294 42.94
- Loans [} 1,024.27 910.75
- Other financial assets T 120.97 21503
Income tax assets (net) & 123.24 123.24
Deferred tax assets (net) 9 63046 483.66
Other non-current assets 10 460.13 519.75
Total non-current assets 5,039.06 4.006.46
Current assets
Inventories 1t 20,556.94 17.103.29
Financial assets
- Trade receivables 12 697,35 645.62
= Cash and cash equivalents 13 82747 718.91
- Loans [ 405,54 367.99
- Other financial assets ¥ 671 951
Other current assets 14 2,200.89 2,130.40
Total current assets 24,694.90 20,975.72
Total Assers 29,733.96 24,982.18
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 15 1,690.17 1,590.86
Other equity 16 11.481.10 7.570.10
Total equity 13,171.27 9,160.96
Liabilities
Non-current linbilities
Financial habilibes
- Borrowings 17 1,409 65 110929
Provisions 18 233.62 142,24
Total non-current liahilities 1,648.27 1,251.53
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 17 5.304.30 4,098 84
-Trade payables 19

-total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enmterprises - -

-tatal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 6,763.49 7.723.17

small enterprises
- Other financial liabilities 0 1,946.95 1.678.34
Other current liabilities 21 615.72 1,003.18
Provisions 18 7.14 2.69
Current tax liabilities (net ) 22 274.82 63.47
Total current liabilities 14,914.42 14,569.69
Total liabilities 16.562.69 15.821.22
Toral Equiry and Liahilities 29,733.96 24,982.18
Significant accounting policies 2
Notes to the financial statements 3-40

The accompanying notes form an itegral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered decountamiy
Firm Registration No. 101 248W/W- 100022

Adhir Kapoor
Parmer
Membership No. : 098297

Plage: New Delln
Date: 04 May 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Ethos Limited

Maonaging Director
DIN: 000121 58

ja Sekhar
“hief Financial Officer

¥ i O
n(fh ifman i

( wadtgai) Secreiae

Place: New Delhi
Date: 04 May 2019

W

Anil Khanna
Threcior
DIN: 00012232

PranW

Chief Fxecntive Officer



Ethos Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2019

{(Rupees in lakhs except share data, per share data and ualess otherwise stated)

Particulars

Note Year ended
31 March 2019

Year ended
31 March 2018

Revenue from operations
Other income
Total Income

Expenses

Purchase of stock-in-trade

Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade
Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expense
Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense
- Current tax
- Current year
- Changes in estimates related Lo previous year
- Deferred tax

Total income tax expense
Profit for the vear
Other comprehensive income/(expense)

Irems that will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss
- Re-measurement of defined benefit (assetiliability

Income tax relating 1o items that will not be reclassified to profit or foss
- Re-measurement of defined benefit (asset)Tiability
Total other comprehensive (expense)/ income for the year (net of income tax)

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per equity share [nominal value ol Rs. 10 (previous vear Rs 10)]
Basic (Rs.)

Diluted (Rs.)

Significant accounting policies
Notes to the financial statements

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For BSR& Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 101248W/W-100022

i b

Adhir Kapoor '
Partner
Membership No_ - 098297

Place: New Delhi
Date: 04 May 2019

23 44,237 46 15.609.19
24 97 86 175.76
44,335.32 35,784.95
23 34,988 34 27,309 88
26 (3.453.65) (204.71)
27 321390 2.268.99
23 75967 65827
29 477.33 407.36
30 6,504 08 4,824 21
42.489.67 35,264.00
1,845.65 520.95
31
202 48 8139
(29.93) -
(136 40) 39,93
726.15 121.32
1,119.50 399.63
(29.76) 6.77
10,40 (2.36)
(19.36) 441
1,100.14 404.04
32
607 1.94
607 1.94
2
340

For and on hehalf of the Board of
Ethos Limited

Managing Direcror
DIN: 00012158

Chief Finanhcial Officer

Ahil Dhiman
Cormipany Secretary

Place: New Delht
Date: 04 May 2019

Directors of

Anil Khanna
Director
DIN: 00012232

nav Shankar Saboo

Company Secretary



Ethos Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2019
(AN amownes 1 & Fakhs, excepi for share data amd if otherwise siated)

a.  Equity share capital Note Totul
Balance as a1 01 Apnl 2017 15 1.320.39
Changes in equity share capital during 2017-3018 27047
Balance as al 31 March 2018 15 1.540 &6
Changes in equity share capital during 2018-2019 99 31
Bal as a1 31 March 20619 1,690 17

b.  Other Equity

Reserves and surplus Total
(\ompuls.c;y ” , Share application Share options i Sl \ R d
r cnn\.r\:rll e Deem .c:lgul.a money pending outstanding n![ll[l-l secunnies wlanne
cumulative preference  contnbution alloiment S Teserve premium carnings
shares

Balance as at 31 March 2017 196001 1451 - 7441 167 419519 [1,08252) 516327
- Profit for the year - - - - - - 35963 39963
-Other comprehensive income (et of lax) - - - - - - 4 41 441
Tatal comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 04 04 A0 04
lssue af equity shares for cash - - - - - 206503 - 206503
-lssue of equity shares on account of conversion

of compulsory convertible cumulanve preference
shares (121001} = - - - 110001 - 11000y
-Share options exercised (7 55) 755 -
-Preference dividend on redeemable preference shares no

lomger pavable - LRI - - - - - 3600
-Emplayee stock option expense - - - 1176 - - 1176
Asat 31 March 2018 750,00 S0.51 78,02 1.67 730778 1078 45) TS0
-Profit for the vear - - - - - = 111950 1,019 50
-Other comprehensive mcome (net of lax) - - - - - - {19 369 (19.36)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - 1,100.14 110004
-lssue of equity shares for cash - - - - . 2.800.68 - 21800 b8
-Share opuong lipsed - - - (782) - - - 17.82)
-Share application money - 18 00 - - - - 18.00
As a1 31 March 2019 750.00 50.51 18.00 T0.80 1.67 10,168.46 421.66 1148110

Sugmificant accounting policies 2
Notes 1o the financial stalements i-40

The accompanying notes form an mtegral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

for BS R & Co. LLP
Cpariered Acoguntaniy

s

ir Knpoor Anil Khanna
Fartner v Muanaging [irecior Ihvecior
Membership No - 008297 DIN: 00012158 DIN: 00012232

Chfed Finantial cer

Place: New Dellu Place: New Delln
Date: 04 May 2019 Date: 04 May 2019

Fonnive Officer




Ethos Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the vear ended 31 March 2019
(Rupes in bkl except vivare daa. per share dee and apless afierise seeaedt

For the year ended For the yeur ended
31 March 2019 31 Murch 2018

A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Prafit before income fax |.445.65 32095

Adjusamens tor

Dlepreciation amd aman iz espense
Property, plant and equipments weinten oft i pet)
Shure hased payiments

43735 407 16

TEAT

Finnnce costs
Interess income 197 86)
Provisions no konger required weiten back {38871 (69.71)
Amortization of premium on foeward cychange conrocs - .17
Armen Lion of prepaid expense =
Unrealized foreign exelmnge (@i loss 122.76) 3342
Advances | deposits ¢ Bad debls weinen off isdl 35 k4
Cperating cash Now before working capital changes 194157 1.586.30
tIncrease} m lonns (67.35) {13631)
Decrease! | imcrease] in ather financial assers 685 (131.97)
(Imerease ) in oLher non=current i5s¢1s (43.05) 343
{Imerense | m invetonas 11.453.65) 20470
{Incroase) in imde roceivables (51.73) 484210
(Inerease] in other carrent assers 110887y (1.998.33)
Intrease in provisions 71407 2850
{Decrense ) incresse in inde pavables 187606 127518
I i 1 in other fi ial liabihities 8457 {4985
{Decrense ) in other current liabilities 38747y IR ES]
Cash (used in)/ generated from operating activities (1,486.12) (179.54)
Incarmie tax paid (nel) 1651.22) 68 69
Nel cash (used in) [ generated from operating activities 12,137.34) (110,85}
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 11.298.0%) 11.156.04)
Proceeds from sake of property. plant and equipment .63 1003
Puyment for purchase of investments - (4194}
Repayment of laans by emplovess = .
Interest recerved I4.16 b7
Net cash used in investing activities (1.283.28) {1.182.58)

. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds rom issue of euity shan: capital (inehud ing premumy 28047 222550
Proceeds from non-carrent hommw ings B0 1,128.54
Repayvinent of fon-current hormwings 203,50 (2,397.75)
Froceeds from/repayments of corrent borrowings (net) 119573 73513
Trinerest il (757.23) {585,101
et eash low from Anancing setivitdes 3.529.18 110666
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) 108.56 (IRT.07)
Cush und cash cquivalents at the beginning of the vear T18.91 IS 08
Cash and cash equivalents o the cnd of the vear 817.47 71891
Notes
|, Cash and cash equivikents inclide
Balance with banks in current pecomimts 15494 230.72
Cheques, drafts on hand R 166.39
Cash on hand 1002 98.13
Credit cards recevable BRUT 23367
Cash and cush balance at the end of the year B217.47 T18.91

2 The cash flow statement has boen propared in seeordance with “Indireet Method” as set our on Indisn Aceounting Standard -7 on

"Statement on Cash Flows ",

1 Refer note no 2 for significant ascounting poligics.
4 Reconciliation of movernents of lbilities 1o cash Dows arisimg freim Dinancing aeivines

Barrowings at the beginning of the vear jcurrent and von curmeni) 6,330.28 686402
Proseeseds from pon-current burrowings ELERT 1. 12588
Repayment of non-current borrowings (20559 {2,397 .75}
Proceeds from/re payments of urrent Borrowings {net) 1.195.73 73513
Borrowings at the end of the year (current and non current) 7,706.52 6.‘30.1.1

Significant sccounting policies
Notes 1o the financial statements el

The accompanying notes form an imegral pare of the financial statements

As per onr report of even date attnched

For BSR & Co LLP Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors off
{hartered Accoumiants Ethos Limited

s o
Manayiog Director
THN Mo 0002158

Membership No. : (98297

ahipity Seeredary

Place: Mew Defhi Place: New Delhi
D 4 May 20089 Daza: 04 May 2009
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Rupees in lakhs except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

a)

i)

jii)

iv)

Reporting entity

Ethos Limited ('Ethos' or 'the Company'), a subsidiary of KDDL Limited, is a limited liability company and
was incorporated on § November 2007. The Company’s business consists of trading of waiches. accessories
and luxury items and rendering of related after sale services.

Significant accounting policies

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy
hitherto in use.

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the Companies (India
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 notified under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the
“Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Effective | April 2016, the Company had transitioned to Ind AS while the standalone financial statements
were being prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2014 (previous
GAAP) till 31 March 2017 and the transition was carried out in accordance of Ind AS 101 "First time
adoption of Indian Accounting Standards". While carrying out transition, in addition to the mandatory
exemptions, the Company had elected to certain exemptions which are listed as below:

- The Company had opted to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets as recognized in the standalone financial statements prepared under
previous GAAP and use the same as deemed cost in the financial statement as at the transition date,

The standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2019 were approved by
the Company’s Board of Directors on 4 May 2019.
Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is the Indian rupee. These standalone financial statements are
presented in Indian rupees. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, up to two places of
decimal, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of measurement

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following

items:

Items Measurement basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value
(including derivative instruments)

Net defined benefits (assets)/liability Fair value of the plan assets less present value of
defined benefits obligations
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v)

vi)

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of standalone financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities. income and expenses and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the standalone financial statements. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any
revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

Judgments

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on
the amounts recognised in the standalone financial statements is included in the following notes:

- Note 2(c) and 3 — Assessment of useful life of Property, plant and equipment
- Note 2(d) and 4 — Assessment of useful life of Intangible assets

- Note 2(g), 18 and 36 — Provisions and contingent liabilities

- Note 2(n) and 8 — Income taxes

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment in the year ending 31 March 2018 is included in the following notes:

- Note 35 — Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

- Note 18 and 36 — Recognition and measurement of provision and contingencies, key assumptions
about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources:

- Note 2(p)(ii) — Impairment test of non-financial assets: key assumptions underlying recoverable
amounts;

- Note 2(p)(i)- Impairment of financial assets

- Note 9- Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses
carried forward can be used;

- Note 2(a) (vi)- Fair value measurement

- Note 335- Share based payments

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to measurement of fair values. This
includes the top management division which is responsible for overseeing all significant fair value
measurements, including Level 3 fair values. The top management division regularly reviews significant
unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. [f third party information, is used to measure fair values,
then the top management division assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the
conclusion that these valuations meet the requirement of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value
hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows:

- Level |: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

When measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
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possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability fall into different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirely in the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the changes have occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values used in preparing these standalone
financial statements is included in the respective notes

b) Property, plant and equipment (*‘PPE")

Recognition and measurement

Items of PPE are measured at cost of acquisition or construction which includes capitalised finance costs
less accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Cost of an item of PPE comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase
taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its
working condition for its intended use. The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment
comprises the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to
working condition for its intended use. and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Capital work Capital work-in-progress comprises the cost of fixed assets that are not ready for their intended
usc at the reporting date.

Advances paid towards acquisition of PPE outstanding at each Balance sheet date. are shown under other
non-current assets.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only ifit is probable that the future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of PPE less their estimated residual values over their estimated
useful lives using the straight-line method and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Depreciation on items of PPE is provided as per rates corresponding to the useful life specified in Schedule
[T to the Companies Act. 2013 read with the notification dated 29 August 2014 of the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs except for office equipments being mobile phones which are depreciated over the estimated life of
two years from the date of capitalization on the basis of internal evaluation by the management basis which
the management believes that this useful life best represents the period over which these asset will be used,

Leasehold improvements are depreciated under the straight line over the period of lease.

|
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<)

d)

Leasehold land is amortized on a straight line basis over the period of the lease. In view of the management,
these rates are indicative of the estimated economic useful lives of the fixed assets.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted

if appropriate.

Depreciation on additions (disposal) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e from (upto) the date on which asset
is ready for use (disposed of).

Derecognition
A property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use and disposal. Losses arising from retirement and gains or losses arising from disposal

of a tangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Other intangible assets

Acquired Intangible

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. Cost of an item of
Intangible asset comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes.
after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working
condition for its intended use.After initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less any
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Amortisation
Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives using the
straight-line method, and is included in depreciation and amortisation expense in statement of profit and

loss. The estimated useful life of Computer Software (ERP) is 6 years.

Amortisation method, useful life and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and
adjusted if appropriate.

Derecognition

Intangible assets is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
and disposal.

Inventories
Inventories which comprises traded goods which are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The cost of inventories is based on the weighted average cost method, and includes expenditure incurring in

acquiring the inventories, and other costs incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business. less the estimated costs
necessgry (o make the sale.
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e)

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g.. salaries and
wages and bonus etc.. if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a
result of past service provided by the employee. and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Share-based payment transactions

The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards granted to employees is recognised
as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees
unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as expense is based on the estimate
of the number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be
met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards that do
meet the related service and non-market vesting conditions at the vesting date.

The Company has elected to apply Ind AS 102 Share based payment to equity instruments that vested after
the date of transition to Ind AS pursuant to the exemption under Ind AS 101,

Post-employment benefits

-Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions to a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.
The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards employee provident fund and employee state
insurance scheme (‘ESI’) to Government administered scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The
Company’s contribution is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period
in which the employee renders the related service.

-Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. Gratuity is
a defined benefit plan. The administration of the gratuity scheme has been entrusted to the Life Insurance
Corporation of India (‘LIC’). The Company’s net obligation in respect of gratuity is calculated separately
by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods,
discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability i.e. Gratuity, which comprise actuarial gains and losses
are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). The Company determines the net interest expense
(income) on the net defined benefit liability for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the
defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then- net defined benefit liability,
taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of
contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benetit plans
are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
relates to past service (‘past service cost” or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is
recognised immediately in the statement of profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the
settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

" Chartered
Accountants
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4]

h)

Other long term employee benefits

Compensated absences

The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employvee benefits other than post-employment
benefits is the amount of future benefit that emplovees have earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any related
assets is deducted. Such obligation such as those related to compensate absences is measured on the basis
of an annual independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit cost credit method. Remeasurements
gains or lossess are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when, as a result of past event, the Company has a present
obligation that can be estimated reliably. and it is probable that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
(representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet
date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost, Expected future losses
are not provided for.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a deemed equity contribution if no premium was paid when
guarantee is received. Deemed equity contribution is initially measured at fair value.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined as the present value of the difference in net cash flows
between the contractual payments under the debt instrument and the payments that would be required
without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that would be payable to a third party for assuming the
obligations.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that
may. but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be
estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are disclosed unless the possibility
of outflow of resources is remote.

Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the possibility
of an inflow of economic benefits to the entity. Contingent assets are recognized when the realisation of

income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate,

A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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Commitments

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of
assets. Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each reporting

date.

Revenue

The Company earns revenue primarily from trading of watches, accessories and luxury items and
rendering of related after sale services.

Effective 1 April 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive
framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be recognised, Ind AS 115
replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue and Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts. The Company has adopted Ind AS
115 using the cumulative effect method, applied to contracts that were not completed as of April 1, 2018.
In accordance with the cumulative effect method, the comparatives have not been retrospectively
adjusted. The following is a summary of new and/or revised significant accounting policies related to
revenue recognition. Refer Note 2 “Significant Accounting Policies.” in the Company’s 2018 Annual
Report for the policies in effect for revenue prior to | April 2018. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115
was insignificant.

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products sold or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or
services. To recognize revenues, we apply the following five step approach: (1) identify the contract with
a customer, (2) identify the performance obligations in the contract, (3) determine the transaction price,
(4) allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract, and (5} recognize
revenues when a performance obligation is satisfied.

At contract inception, the Company assesses its promise to transfer products or services to a customer to
identify separate performance obligations. The Company applies judgement to determine whether each
product or services promised to a customer are capable of being distinct, and are distinct in the context
of the contract. if not, the promised product or services are combined and accounted as a single
performance obligation. The Company allocates the arrangement consideration to separately identifiable
performance obligation based on their relative stand-alone selling price or residual method. Stand-alone
selling prices are determined based on sale prices for the components when it is regularly sold separately,
in cases where the Company is unable to determine the stand-alone selling price the Company uses third-
party prices for similar deliverables or the company uses expected cost plus margin approach in
estimating the stand-alone selling price.

For performance obligations where control is transferred over time, revenues are recognized by
measuring progress towards completion of the performance obligation. The selection of the method to
measure progress towards completion requires judgment and is based on the nature of the promised
products or services to be provided.

The method for recognizing revenues and costs depends on the nature of the products sold and services
rendered:
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Sale of goods

Revenue on sale of goods are recognized when the customer obtains control of the specified asset.

Customer loyalty programmes

For customer loyalty programmes, the fair value of the consideration received or receivable in respect of
initial sale is allocated between the award credits and the other components of the sale. The amount
allocated to award credits is deferred and is recognised as revenue when the award credits are redeemed
and the Company has fulfilled its obligations to supply the discounted products under the terms of the
programme or when it is no longer probable that the award credits will be redeemed.

Sale of services

k)

e

Revenue from services rendered is recognised in profit or loss when the services are rendered and the
related costs are incurred,

Recognition of interest income or expense
Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to :

- The gross carrying amount of the financial asset: or
- The amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense. the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount
of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. However. for
financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is
no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred by the Company
in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or
construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use are capitalized as a part of cost of the asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

Income taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to a business combination or an item recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and

any adjuslmeint to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous vears. The amount of current tax
't
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m)

reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty,
if any. related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted

by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or

simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of the assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future profits will be available against
which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may
not be available. Therefore. in case of history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset
only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence
that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized. Deferred
tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised / reduced to
the extent that it is probable / no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefits will be realized.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized
or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting

date.
The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Company expects. at the reporting date, fo recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and

liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authorities.

Leases

At the inception of each lease, the lease arrangement is classified as either a finance lease or an operating
lease based on the substance of the lease arrangement.

Finarice leases

Assets leased by the Company in its capacity as lessee where substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership vest in the Company are classified as finance leases, A finance lease is recognised as an asset and
a liability at the commencement of the lease. at the lower of the fair value of the asset and the present value
of the minimum lease payments. Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned
between the finance expense and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated
to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability,

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the
Company as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payment made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis
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over the period of the lease unless the payment are structure to increase in line with expected general inflation
to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

Financial instruments

i. Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assels

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at:

- amortised cost;

- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) — debt investment;

- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) — equity investment;
- fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

- A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On the recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCT —equity
investment). This election is made on an investment-hy- investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCT as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.
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Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
at FVTPL including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in statement of profit

Financial assets | These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
at amortised cost | interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is recognised in

Debt investments | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under
at FVOCI the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in statement of profit or loss. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in OCL. On de- recognition, gains and losses accumulated
in OCI are reclassified to statement of profit or loss.

Equity These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised
investments at as income in statement of profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents
FVOCI a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are

recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classtfication, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL, A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL, if it is classified as held for trading. or it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and
losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition
is also recognised in profit or loss.

iii.  De-recognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire. or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
assets are not derecognised.
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Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

iv. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and
it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

v.  Derivative financial instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency risk exposures. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contact is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liability when the fair value is negative

p) Impairment
i, Impairment of financial asset

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit loss on financial assets measured at
amortised cost. At each reporting date. the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at
amortised cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is “credit-impaired” when one or more events that
have detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have occurred.

Evidence that the financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer:

- the breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not
consider otherwise:

- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial re-organisation; or

- the disappearance of active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. except
for the following. which are measured as |2 month expected credit losses:

- Bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the
financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
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I 2-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including forward looking information.

Measurement of expected credit {osses

Expected credit losses are a probability- weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. difference between the cash flow due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash flow that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet
Loss allowance for financial assets measured at the amortised cost is deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that
the debtors do not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amount subject to the write-off. However. financial assets that are written off could still be subject
to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedure for recovery of amounts

due.
i) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company's non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets. are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine if there is indication of any impairment. If any such indication exists, then
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For impairment testing, assets that do not generate
independent cash flows are grouped together into cash generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents
the smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows that are largelv independent of the cash inflows
of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of as CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and fair
value less cost to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

The Company’s corporate assets (e.g., central office building for providing support to various CGUs)
do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of a corporate asset, recoverable
amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount. Tmpairment losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss. An
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
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r)

s)

t)

u)

the carrying amount that would have been determined net of depreciation or amortisation, if’ no
impairment loss had been recognised.

q) Foreign currency transactions
Initial recognition

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the Company at the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the
actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Measurement at the reporting date

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange
rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based
on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
Exchange differences on restatement/settlement of all monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may
earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of
the Company’s other components, and for which discrete financial information is available. All operating
segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Company’s Chief Operating Decision Maker
(CODM) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash in
hand. demand deposits held with banks. other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects
of transactions of a non-cash nature. any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows
from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings/ (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events of bonus issue
and share split. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings/ (loss) per share, the net profit or loss for the
period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares
are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period. unless they have been issued at a later date.

:
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v)

Standards issued but not yet effective

Ind AS 116, Leases

The Company is required to adopt Ind AS 116, Leases from | April 2019. Ind AS 116 introduces a single,
on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises a right-of-use asset representing
its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease pay ments.
There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low-value items. Lessor accounting
remains similar to the current standard — i.e. lessors continue to classify leases as finance or operating leases.
1t replaces existing leases guidance, Ind AS 17, Leases.

The Company has completed an initial assessment of the potential impact on its standalone financial
statements but has not yet completed its detailed assessment. The quantitative impact of adoption of Ind AS
116 on the standalone financial statements in the period of initial application is not reasonably estimable as
at present.

Leases in which the Company is a lessee

Under the new standard, the Company is required to recognise the assets and liabilities for its operating
leases. The nature of expenses related to those leases will now change because the Company will recognise
a depreciation charge for right-of-use assets and interest expense on lease liabilities.

Previously. the Company recognised operating lease expense over the term of the lease, and recognised
assets and liabilities only to the extent that there was a timing difference between actual lease payments and
the expense recognised.

Based on the preliminary assessment. the operating leases like liaison offices, warchouse and residential
accommodation are short term leases and accordingly are exempted from the above recognition criteria.
Accordingly, no significant impact is expected for the Company s operating leases.

No significant impact is expected for the Company s finance leases.

Leases in which the Company is a lessor

Based on the information currently available. there are no contracts in which the Company is a lessar.
Transition

The Company plans to apply Ind AS 116 initially on 1 April 2019, using the modified retrospective approach.
Therefore. the cumulative effect of adopting Ind AS 116 will be recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings at 1 April 2019, with no restatement of comparative information.

The Company plans to apply the practical expedient to grandfather the definition of a lease on transition.
This means that it will apply Ind AS 116 to all contracts entered into before 1 April 2019 and identified as
leases in accordance with Ind AS 17,

Ind AS 12 Income taxes (amendments relating to income tax consequences of dividend and uncertainty
over income tax treatments)

The amendment relating to income tax consequences of dividend clarify that an entity shall recognise the
income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to
where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events. The Company does not expect any
impact from this pronouncement. It is relevant to note that the amendment does not amend situations where
the entity pays a tax.on dividend which is effectively a portion of dividends paid to taxation authorities on
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behalf of shareholders. Such amount paid or payable to taxation authorities continues to be charged to equity
as part of dividend. in accordance with Ind AS 12.

The amendment to Appendix C of Ind AS 12 specifies that the amendment is to be applied to the
determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates,
when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. It outlines the following: (1) the
entity has to use judgement, to determine whether each tax treatment should be considered separately or
whether some can be considered together. The decision should be based on the approach which provides
better predictions of the resolution of the uncertainty (2) the entity is to assume that the taxation authority
will have full knowledge of all relevant information while examining any amount (3) entity has to
consider the probability of the relevant taxation authority accepting the tax treatment and the
determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases. unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates
would depend upon the probability, The Company does not expect any significant impact of the
amendment on its financial statements.

Ind AS 109 — Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

The amendments relate to the existing requirements in Ind AS 109 regarding termination rights in order
to allow measurement at amortised cost (or, depending on the business model. at fair value through
other comprehensive income) even in the case of negative compensation payments. Ethos Limited does
not expect this amendment to have any impact on its financial statements,

Ind AS 19 — Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments clarify that if a plan amendment. curtailment or settlement occurs. it is mandatory that
the current service cost and the net interest for the period after the re-measurement are determined using
the assumptions used for the re-measurement. In addition, amendments have been included to clarify the
effect of a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement on the requirements regarding the asset ceiling.
Ethos Limited does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact on its financial statements.

i I y S
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3 Property. plant and equ prient and capital work-in-progress

Reconcilintion of Gross carrying amount

) Leasehokd Plant and .Dfﬁte Vehicles Total Total
IPEVEMEnLs edjuipament fittim equipment
Giross carrying amount
Balance as a1 01 Apnl 2017 463 Bo 98.92 o9 54 5T 94 1183 1.295.09 271 1.317 80
Additions FTF:x] 212 307 ) 51 54 197 18 113604 33635 1.472.39
IMsposals (17.19) = {43.05) (3 47] (21.57) (H5.28) {322.21) (407 49)
Balance as at 31 March 2018 102558 10113 914.39 106,01 198.44 134585 36.85 2,382.69
Balance as at 01 Apnl 2018 1,025 & 10113 al4 34 10601 168 44 234585 3685 138270
Additions 471 87 5708 294 80 5432 42.36 92040 634 53 1.554 93
Disposals - = . {1 29 - {1.29) (231 30) (232 65)
Balance as at 31 March 2019 1.497.75 158.18 1,209.19 159.04 240.80 3.264.96 440.02 3,704.98
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 01 April 2017 186.01 2 11372 it 14 a 57 346,16 - 3016
Depreciation for the year 124.10 185 121.33 2090 1302 30418 - 394 18
Aceumulated depreciation on disposals {16 56) - (1401} {2.30) (8 42) {41 29) - {41.29)
Rilance as at 31 March 2018 393,55 355 221.04 64,74 11.17 699,05 - 69004
Ralance as at 01 Apnl 201§ 393 55 355 2104 o4 T s 699 0% 69905
Depreciation for the year 267 50 713 129.81 3593 2481 465 18 46518
Accumulated depreciation on disposals - - (0 64) - (0 6d) (0.64)
Balunce as at 31 March 2019 G605 15.68 350.85 104,03 3598 1,163.59 - 1,163.549
Carrying amounts (net)
At 31 March 2018 63233 9158 093,35 4127 187.27 1.646.80 36.85 1.683.65
At 31 March 2019 836.70 142.50 R58.34 S9.01 204.83 Ly 440,02 1.541.3%
Notes:
a Refer note 17 for mformation on property, planmt and equipment pleducd as security by the Company
b Refer note 36 for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
4 ther intangible assets
Reconciliation of Gross carrying amount
Computer Softwares Intangible assets Total
under development
Gross carrying amoun(
Balance as at 01 April 2017 5623 - 56.28
Additions / acquired s " -
Disposals (069 - {069y
Balance as al 31 March 2018 £5.59 - 58,59
Balance as at 11 April 2018 45 §0 . 5550
Additions / acquired 42 16 3821 RO 37
Disposals i
Ralance as at 31 March 2019 97.75 3821 135.96
Amortisation
Balance as at 01 April 2017 1523 - 15.23
Amaortisation for the year 1318 - 1318
Disposals (0.26) - {0 26)
Balance as at 31 March 2018 2815 - 2815
Balance as at U1 Apnl 2018 28 15 - 2815
Amortisation For the year 12.15 - 1215
Disposals -
), Balance as ai 31 March 2019 40.30 - 0,30
E Carrying & (met
[AL31 March 2018 2744 | = ] 27.44 |
[A131 March 2019 57.45 | 38.21 | 95.66 |
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s. Investmenis

As at

31 March 2019

Non-current investment
[ (iaggascateed iavestmmeds
Subsidiary

Asat
31 Mareh 2018

-lavestment in partnership firm (at cost) # 4294 4294
42 494 42 94
# Investment in Cognition Digital LLP
As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Total capital - Total capital
a
contribution Sharé (%) contribution Share £%)
Partners
Ethos Limited 4264 90 94 4204 G99 94
Mr Pranav Saboo (beneficial owner is Ethos Limited) - o - 0ol
42 94 100.00 42.94 100 00
As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
6, Loans* Current Nom-current Current Non-current
fuirsecnred, covisidered goced imifess atheniise stoied)
Security deposits
- from related parties (refer note no. 37) - 677 - 677
- from others 19393 Loa27 364 76 901 26
Loan io employees 1161 T.23 3123 L7z
40554 1,024 27 36799 91075
*The Company's exposure to credit and currency risk, and loss allowances related to other non current finencial assets are disclosed in note 33
Asat As at
T Other financial assets 31 March 2012 31 March 2018
Current Non-current Current Non-current
Deposits with oniginal maturity of more than 12 mwonths & - 12097 - 21503
Derivative financial instruments - - 280 -
Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits e7l - 67l -
67l 12097 951 21503
# These deposits include restricted bank deposits amounting 1o Rs. 113 9% (31 March 2018 : Rs.215.03) on account of depasits pledged as secuniy for bank guaraniees
As mt As at

& Income tax assets (net)
Advance income tax and tax deducted al source
(net of provision for income-tax Rs. 1.040.33 (31 March 2018 Rs 204 27)

5. Deferved tax assets (net)
Significant components of the Company's net deferred tax are s follows:

31 March 2019

Asat
31 March 2019

31 March 2018

12324

123 24

As at
31 March 2018

Deferred tax assets 630 46 483 66
Deferred tax liabilities N =
Net deferred tax assets 630 46 483 66
Opening Bal Recognised in Recognised in Closing Balance
profit or loss other
comprehensive
income
2017-201%
Deeferred 1ax assets:
Deferred ey assers on
Property, plant and equipments and [ntangible assets 2726 DO 38 - 307.64
Provision for employee benefits 39 49 1357 (2.36) 50.70
Provision - others 6% (6 13 48 - 81.52
Others 4379 - - 4379
Tax losses carried forward 15735 (157.3%) - -
MNet deferred tax asset 5259 (39.93) (2 36) 483 66
Opening Balance Recognised in Recognised in Closing Balance
profit or loss ather
comprehensive
income
2018-2019
Deferred tax assels
Dieflerred sy eusseis on
Property. plant and equipments and Intanuible assets 37 64 sn - 34275
Provision for employee benefits 5670 2368 10,40 £4 78
Prowvision - others £] 52 121 .41 - 20293
Others 4379 (43.79 - -
MNet deferred tax asset 483 66 13640 10 40 630 46
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As at As at
o, (ther non-current assets 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(isecnred, consicered good wless othercise staivd)
Capital advances
- to others 79.57 184 24
Advances other than capital advances
- Prepaid expenses 162 00 116,95
« CENVAT credit receivable 48 56 48 56
- Claim recervable { refer note 36) 17000 170 00
460,13 510 75
Asarl As at
1L Inventories 31 March 20149 31 March 2018
(A Jower of cosr aned nel realisable valne)
Stock-in-trade [including goods-in-transit Rs. 214.66 (31 March 2018 Rs. 386.66]]
20.556.94 17103 29
20.556.94 17,1

As at As al
12, Trade receivables 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(Uinseciured, comsidered good ikess otherwise siared)
Trade receivables #
= Related parties {refer to note 37) 417.77 51575
279.58 12087

- Others
697,35 G45.62

# The Company's exposure to credit and currency risk. and loss allowanees related to trade receivables are disclosed in note 33

Asal As at

13, Cash and cash equivalents 31 March 2019 31 March 2008
Balances with banks in

- current accounts * 25494 220,12

Chegques, drafts on hand 38244 166,39

Cash on hand 101.12 98.13

Dihers
- eredit cards receivable 23367
71891

* includes Rs 1806 (31 March 2018 RsNil) beng the amount of equity shares pending allotment.

Information pursuani to G.S.R. 308 { E) dated 30 March 2017 issued by Ministry of corporate afTairs:
The disclosures regarding details of specified bank notes held and transacted during 8 November 2016 1o 30 December 2016 has not been made in these financial statements since the

requirement does not pertain to financial year ended 31 March 2019

As at As at
14, Other current asscts 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(L insectred, consiclered good wless orfierwise sicieel)
Prepaid expenses 8288 81,96
Advances for supply of goods 300 T4 200.95
Advances to emplovees 6456 947
GST credit receivable 1.e1a 57 1.760.95
Duty drawback recoverable - 48,81
Depaosit under protest 7550 -
Other advances 0 6 836
L — =mow
|
! J
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15,

a)

Equity share capital
Asat As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Number of Amount Number of Amount

shares shares
Awthorised
Equity shares of Rs. 10 cach 0. 700,000* 3,070.00¢ 30, 700,000% 3,070.00
14 cumulative compulsory convertible preference shares of Rs 130 cach 876,924 T80 00 376,924 T50.00
12% cumulative compulsory convertible preference shares of Rs 110 each 1,200,000 1,320 00 1,200,004 1,320.00
12% non cumulative redeemable preference shares of Rs, 100 each 1,000,006 1,000 (0 1,000,000 1,000 0l

33,476,924 &, 140,00 33,476,924 6,140.00

Psxmed, sorbwerebed ard fully peced ap**

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each (i 16,001,713 1,69017 15,908 564 1,590 8a
14%5 cumulative compulsary convertible preference shares of Rs. |30 each # (i) 576,923 750,00 576,523 75000
17,478,636 2.440.17 16,485,487 2,340.86

* includes 16,950,000 shares pursuant to transfer of authorised share capital from Rs 1,695 preference shares to equivalent number of equity shares of face value of Rs 10 each

# classified as "other equity” in the statement of changes in equity
Righus, preference and restricnaon arached te shares

(i) The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The voting rights of an
equity shareholder on show of hand or through proxy shall be in proportion to his share of the paid up capital of the Company. The Company declares and pays dividends in
Indian Rupees The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors {except for interim dividend) is subject to approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
In the event of liguidation of the Campany the holders of equity shares will be entitled Lo receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion 1o the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders

{ii) The preference shareholders do not hold any voting rights. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is
subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, Where dividend on cumulative preference shares is not declared for a financial year the
entitlement thereto s carmed forward whereas in the case of non-cumulative preference shares the eatitlement for that year lapses. In the event of liguidation of the Company the
holders of preference shares will be entitled 1o recerve the amount of their preference capital comeibution before distribution of the remaining assets to the equity shareholders.

Conversion terms of 376,923 14% cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs 130 each fully paid wp is 5 (Five years from the date of allotment in equal
mumber of exquity shares of face value of Rs 10 each at a premium of Rs 120 (and any cumulative dividend remaining unpaid) at the end of 5 (Five) years. Accordingly, these
preference shares will he converted in various tranches commencing 6 November 2019

The holder of 248,373 4% cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs 130 each has “tag along and put option rights”. Tag aleng rights shall trigger in the
event of promoter selling a substantial portion {more than 10% of combined shareholding of the promoter) of his shares in the Company to any persan before the expiry of the
term. At such an instance the prefercnce shares shall automatically be converted inte equity shares. The holder shall have the right to cause the promaoter 1o ensure that the
proposed transferee purchases all or part of its shares on a pro rata basis at the same terms and price as offered o the promoter. The holder shall also have the put eption right
which provides a window period of 12 months from the end of term for exercising the option to either cause the promoter to buy back, purchase and / or ensure any third party
to purchase all its shares The holder also has ROFR (right of first refusal) wherein ar the event when the Company issues new shares in favour of any shareholder, the Company
shall first offer such number of shares to the holder such that its sharcholding in the Company prior 1o such transaction 1s maintained afler the completion of such transaction,

The holder of 115,462 14% cumubative compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs 130 each has “tag along and put option rights™ Tag along rights shall trigger in the
evenl of promoter selling a substantial portion (mare than 10%0 of combined shareholding of the promoter) of his shares in the Company to any person before the expiry of the
term. Al such an instance the preference shares shall automatically be converted into equity shares 'The holder shall have the right to cause the promoter to ensure that the
proposed transferee purchases all or parl of its shares on a pro rata basis at the same terms and price as offered to the promoter. The holder shall also have the put option nght
which provides a window period of 18 months from the end of term for exercising the option 1o either cause the promoter to buy back, purchase and / or ensure any third party
1o purchase all its shares

The holder of 272,728 |2% cumulative compulsonly convertible preference shares (converted into equity shares on 23 November 2017) having face value of Rs. | 10 per share
has a put option which provides a window period of |8 moenths from the end of term i e 26 November 2017 for exercising the option to either cause the promoter 1o buy hack,
purchase and / or ensure any third party to purchase all its shares

(iii) Fmplapee Stock aypwion:- Terms attached to stock eptions granted to employess of the company and its holding company are described in note 35 regarding employee share
hased payments.

Reconciliciion of mmber of shares ontstandiang ar the begtnmgs ad end of the reporing year
As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares shares

1) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
Al the beginning of the year 15,908 564 1,590 86 13,203,895 1,320.39
Add: issued during the vear 993, 149 9931 1,583,409 158 34
Add: issued pursuant o conversion of | 2%, cumulative compulsory

canvertible preference shares - - 1,100,010 11000
Add issued on exercise of employee stock options - - 21,250 213
At the end of the year 16,501,713 1,690.17 15,908.564 1,590,856

R
it) 4% cumulative compulsory convertible preference shares of Rs. 130 each tully
At the beginning of the year 576,923 750.00 576,923 5000
At the end of the year 576,923 TEiLH 576,923 750,00
] e

i} 12% cumulative compulsary convertible preference shares of Rs 110 each fully
At the beginmng of the year - - 1,100,010 121000
Add redeemed during the year - (1. 100.010p (1.210.01)
At the end of the vear - - - -

Accountants

*
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o

d)

&)

[{H

(i)

liv)

2)

v

Shares held by wfifmarte hodding compenty holeling company ened or their subsrdiaries. associadies

As at Asatl
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Number of Amount Number of Amaount
Fguiry shiares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
-KDDL Limited (holding company and ultimate holding company) 10,354, 740 1035 47 10,223,508 1.022:35
-Mahen Distribution Limited {fellow subsidiary) 3. 229.32 2293150 22933
1455 commrialative compulsory comvertible preferemee shares of K £30 vach fuliy
paid wp
-KDDL Limited (holding company and ultimate helding company) 19,230 500 19,230 23.00
Dreseatls of shareledders holding mare than 3% shares of o olasy of shares
As al Az at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Number of % holding in the Number of % holding in

shares class shares the class
Legerry strares of fs, 10 each filly paad agr held by
-KDDL Limited 10,394,740 6150 10,225,508 64 26
-Mahen Distribution Limited 2,203,150 1357 2,203,150 1441
-Mr. Mukul Mahavir Agrawal 900,976 533 810,067 509
14% curilative compdsory converithie preference shares af ity 130 el fulfy
-Sixth Sense India Cpportunities - | 248,373 43.08 248373 4305
-Mr. Nikhil Vora 115462 20.00 | 15,462 000
-Mr. RK Saboo 46,155 8.00 46,155 8.00
-Dream Digital Technology Private Limited 7.693 |33 7,693 1,33
-Mrs. Anuradha Saboo 42,308 T35 42,308 733

Bonus shares, shares buvback and issue of shares without consideration being received in cash (during fve years immediately preceding 31 March 2019)

During the five years immediately preceding 31 March 2019 ('the period’), neither any bonus shares have been issued nor any shares have been bought back. In addition. during
the period, no shares have been ssued for consideration other than cash except as follows

The Company during the previous vear ended 31 March 2018 converted 1,100,010 12% cumulative pulsory convertible pref: ¢ shares of fice value of Rs. 110 ino
1,100,010 equity shares of Rs, 10 each at a premium of Rs. 100 gach. Further. 21,250 equity sharés of Rs.10 each had been issued under emplovee stock option plans for which
only exercise price had been received in cash.

The Company had during the vear ended 31 March 2015 redeemed 69,228 12% cumulative optionally convertible preference shares of Rs. 65 each Out of these 40,998 shires
were redeemed by way of payment and balance shares were converted into 19,230 equity shares of Rs 10 each at a premium of Rs 55 each.

The Company had during the year ended 31 March 2015 issued 76.924. 14% cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs |30 each for consideration ather than
cash

During the vear ended 31 March 2016, 56,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each had been issued under emplovee stock option plans for which only exercise price had been received in
cash

During the previous year ended 31 March 2018, 1,100,010 12% cumulative compulsory convertible preference shares of Rs | |0 each were converted imo 1,100,010 equity
shares of Rs 19 each at a premium of Rs |00 per share

Fuapdenvee stock optron plan
Terms attached 10 stock oprions granted to employeas of the Company are deseribed in note 35 (iv) regarding share based payment s

Shares reserved for issne wnder opiions ond covracts

Asat As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares shares
Under Ethos Emplovee Stock option Scheme-2013 - 350,000 equity shares of Rs 10 154,250 1543 171,750 1718
each, at an exercise price of Rs 120 per share { Refer note 35 (iv))
For 14% compulsorily convertible preference shares 576,923 equitv shares of'Rs. 10 576,923 3769 576,923 5769

each
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16, Other equity
(also refer to Statement of Changes in Eguity)

(1) Compadvory cumveriible camlaive prefercnce shares

Terms attached to the compulsary convertible cumulative preference shares are described in note 16(a)(ii) Equity share capital

(i) Leemed capiial contribition

a) Includes 14 51 towards fair value of guarantees given by the parent company in the earlier years
b) Includes 30 0} towards interest accrued on 12% cumulative redeemable preference shares, classified as finanee cost, which 15 no longer payable at the time of redempion.

(i) Stheare: expalication monsey pendig alloinient

Share application money pending allotment represents monies recerved against shares 1o be issued under the employee stock option plan formulated by the Company as at the year end.

{iv) Sheare apiions outstanding accoient
The fair value of the equity settled share based payment transactions with employees is recounised in Statement of Profit and Loss with coresponding credit to share opion
ouIs1andmg account

() Capetel reserve
Accumulated capital surplus not available for distribution and is expected to remain invested permanently,
() Seciritiey premm

Securitics premium represents the excess consideration received by the Company over the face value of the shares issucd 10 sharcholders This will be utilised in sceordance with the
apphicable provisions of the Compames Act, 2013

(vii) Hetained earnings

Retamed earnings represents the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any dividends. or other distributions paid to shareholders

Asat As at
17, Berrowings Nate 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
i) Nom-current horrmingy
Term-loans
From hanks (secured) ta) 157 60 151.06
From others (secured) (b 294 18 33431
Deposits
Diter corpiorsie deposits
From refated parties (unsecured) (refer 1o note 37) () 51700 517.00
From others (unsecured) (d) 200.00 30HO0
Dieprsits from shareholders (unsecured) (e 1,235.44 Bi007
Other loans
L from relahves af direciors frefer note 37) f - 70.00
Total non-current borrowings (including current maluritiss) 240222 2231 44
Less : Current maturities of non-current borrowings irefer to note 20) {992.57) {1,122:15}

1400 65 1105 29
—————
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Notes:
a) Vehicle loans amounting to Rs 157 60 ( 31 March 2018 Rs 151 06 lakhs) are secured against hypothecation of the specified vehicle purchased from proceeds of the said loan. The
rate of interest on vehicle loans varies from § 23% to 11.76% per anpum { 31 March 2018 8.23% 10 11.76%) The above loans are repayable in monthly installments within a period

of next two 1o five years as per repayment schedule
b) The loans from others include loan taken from [ndiabulls Housing Finance Limited The same is secured by exclusive morigage and charge on personal property of the director and
relatives of the director of the Company These limits gre also guaranteed by the holding company, the director of the Company and relatives of the directar. The rate of interest varies

from 11% to 14 50% per annum  The original Loan of Rs 450 lakhs taken in March 2014 will be repaid in 120 monthly instalments along with interest. The loan outstanding as on 31
March 2019 is Rs 204 18 (31 March 2018 Rs 334.31) which will be repaid as per repayment schedule.

¢} Inter corporate deposit from related parties carry an interest rate ranging between 8 50% 1o 16% (31 March 2018 10% to 16%) per annum and the same is repayable within 3-36
months (31 March 2018 within 3-36 months)

d) Inter corporate deposit from others carry an interest rate ranging between 13 5% to 14% (31 March 2018 15.5% to 14%) per annum and the same are repayable as per the repayment

schedule within twenty four months.

&) Deposits. from Shareholders carry interest rate ranging between 8% 1o 12 5% (31 March 2018 8% to 12 5%) per annum and cames a maturity period from & to 36 months from the
respective date of deposits.

) Linsecured loans from relative of directors carry an inerest rate of Rs Nil (31 March 2018 12 5%) per annum

As ut As
i) Current borrawings 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Loan repayable on demand
- From banks (secured}* (2} 523031 335712
Other Laans
-Buyer's credit (secured) (h) = 677 46
-Deposits from shareholders (unsecured) (i 7399 64.26

5,304.30 4,098 84

* includes Rs Wil (31 March 2018 : Rs 1500.00) being the amount unutilized out of equity shares issued towards preferential allotment

Notes

gy Loan repayable on demand from IDBI Bank Limited amounting o Rs. 2386 7 lakhs (31 March 2018 Rs 1,024 6 lukhs) are repayable on demand and are secared by first parri passu
charge on all the current assets of the Company both present pnd future and second parr passu charge on the fixed assets of the Company both present and fiture These limats are also
secured by exclusive morngage and charge on all the immovable fxed assers of the ool room unit (Eigen) of KDDL Limited (Holding Company) at Bangalore. These limits are
gupranteed by the Holding Company (KDDL Limited), personal guarantees of director of the Company and relative of the director. The rate of interest as on 31 March 2019 varies
from 11 25% to 12% (31 March 2008 1125 % to 11 50%) per anmum

Loan repevable on demand from The Jammu & Kashmir Bank Limited smouniing to Rs 874 9 lakhs (31 March 2018 Rs 798 9 lakhs) are repayable on demand and are secured by
first pari passu charge on the stock and receivables of the Company. These limits are also secured by exclusive first charge on assets of Omapac unit at Chandigarh of KDDL Limited
(Holding company). This is further secured by the first and exclusive charge over land and buildi hinery and office equip t of the Parwanoo unit of KDDL Limited These
loans are also guarantced by the Holding Company and personal guarantees of the director of the Company. The rate of interest as on 31 March 2019 vanes from || 406 to 12 40%
(31 March 2018 : 11.40 % to 12.40%) per annum.

Loan repayable on demand from Bank of Mahareshtre amounting 1o Rs 1968 7 lakhs (31 March 2018 Rs. 1.533.6 lakhs) are repayable on demand and are secured by first pami
passu charge by way of hypothecation on entive current assets of the company Thege limits are also secured by 360,000 shares of holding company held by Sh Y Saboo, Managing
Directar of the company and second parri passu charge on entire fixed assets of the Company. Further, these limits are also guaranteed by the Holding Company. personal guarantee of
direetor of the Company and relative of the director. The rate of interest as on 31 March 2019 s 11 50% (31 March 2018 11 50 %) per annum

h) Buyers credit from IDBI Bank Limited amounting to Rs. Nil (31 Mareh 2018 © Rs 677 46 lakhs) are repayable an demand and are secured by first parri passu charge on all the current
assets of the Company both present and future and second parn passu charge on the fixed assets of the Company both present and fature These limits are also secured by exclusive
mortgage and charge on all the immavable fixed assets of the tool room unit (Eigen) of KDDL Limited (Holding Company) a1 Bangalore These limits are guaranteed by the Holding
Company (KDDL Limited), personal guarantees of director of the Company and relative of the director The rate of interest as on 31 March 2019 is Mil (31 March 2018 11 85 %% per
annum),

i) The fixed rate of interest on deposit from sharcholders for matunity period of 1 year in the current year is in the range of 9 0% to 10% per annum (31 March 2018 10 00% to 10.50%
pEr AN ).
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18

Rl

21,

12,

As at

Provisions Note 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Current Non-current Current Non-current
Provisionr jor emplayes benefis
Provision for gratuity 3 312 o2 - 61 55
Provision for compensated absences 5 442 128.39 269 80,69
114 238 62 269 142.24
—

As at Axat

Trade payables**

- Micro, small and medium enterprises #
- Trade payables o related parties {Refer to note 37)
- Other trade payables

31 March 201%

451 539
0314 10

6.76549

31 March 2018

686 69
7,036 48

317

4 There are no micro, small and medium enterpriscs, to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding for moere than 45 days as at the end of the year The information as
required to be disclosed in relation to micro. small and madium enterprises has been determined 1o the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with

the Company.

Particulars

(&) The principal amount remzining unpaid 1o any supplier at the end of the vesr

(b) The interest due on principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of year

(¢} The amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of section |6 of the Micro, Small and Medum
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ( "MSMED} Act"); aleng with the amount of payment made to the
supplier beyvond the appointed day during the vear

() The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the
MEMED aci

(f) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end ofyear

(g) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding vears, until such date
when the inerest dues above are actually paid 10 the small emerprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expense under the MSMED Act

** The Company’s exposure to currency and liquidity risk related to trade pavables is disclosed in note 33

Other financial liabilities

Current maturities of non-current borrowings {refer note [ 7)
Capital creditors

Salaries, wages and bonus and other employes payable
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

Other curreni liabilities

Deferred revenue
Statutory dues
Advances from cusiomers

Current iax liabilities {met)
Provision for income tax (net of advance tax Rs. 639,38, 31 March 2018 Rs
17.92)

As
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 20149

09257
105 69
738 56
11015

1.046.0%

As at
31 March 2019

2257
105.56
287.59

As atl
31 March 2019
27482

274 82

As at
31 March 2018

Asat
31 March 2018

112215
104 52
34390
107 68

167834

As at
31 March 2018

18171
Q4,00
72748

1,005,159

As at
31 March 2018
03 47

6347
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3.

24,

26,

17

18,

9.

an.

Revenue from operations

Sale of products (net of applicable tax)
Sale of services
Other operating revenues

Other income
Interest income under the effective interest rate method on -
-fixed deposits

-securtty deposits m amortised cost
Miscel lanenus

Purchase of stock-in-trade

Purchases during the year

Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade

Opening inveritory
I.:Ss' c|usm3 lﬂ\‘(:r"llr)‘
(Increase) in inventory

Employee benefits expense
Salaries. wages and bonus
Contribution ta provident and other funds

Share based payments
Staff welfare expenses

Finance cost

Interest expense on financial habilities measured af amortised cost
Dividend on redeemable preference shares classified as financial liability measured at amortised cost
Other borrowing cost

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Note
Depreciation of propeny, plant and equipment k]
Amormsauon of other intangible assets 4

Other expenses

Power and fuel

Service cost expense

Insurance

Rent (net of reimbursements) (refer note 40)
Rates and raxes

Repair and mamtenance

Farcign exchange loss (net)

Travelling and convevance

Advertisement and sales promotion (refer note 37)
Directars sitting fees

Printing and stationery

Recruitment expenses

Telephone and telex

Postage and telegram

Legal and professional fees *

Bank charges

Bad debts

Advances / deposiis written off

Loss on sale of Fixed asseis

Property. plant and equipments wrinten off (net)
Miscellancous expenses

|

.,

frmd NN
[ Chartered \™|
Accountants

Year ended
31 March 2019

Year ended
31 March 2018

23744 |0 35,367 87
37288 16813

12051 7319
4423746 35,600.10
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
1213 1136

B3.71 8239

1.02 8201

97.86 175.76

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
34,988 34 27,309 88
54,988.34 27.309.83
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
17.103.29 16,808 58
(20.556.94) {17,103.25)
(3.453.65) (204.71
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
2424 83 2,033 50

141 48 114,09

- 1176

146 59 109 64
3.213.90 2.268.99

Year ended Y ear ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
F12.45 61891

- 14 40

4752 2496

T59.67 658,27

Year ended Yoear ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
403 18 39418

12.15 13.18

477.33 407.36

Year ended Year ended
31 March 20019 31 Miarch 2018
12162 10450

5143 7140

3574 4277

3,060 24 242040
5620 1236

124749 49 80

12782 196.59

202.56 21512
1,573.40 71762

3327 1697

17.69 1413

17 56 24.03

70.28 65 90

188 20 15537

25146 191.92

34130 202.76

2153 =
1%+ 5584
[ ) -

- 3439

86 93 92.22

6.504.08 4.824.21
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3.

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
*Includes payment to auditors {excluding taxes as appheable)
As auditor
Stattory audit 12,50 12.00
Limited review of special purpose quanerly results 675 673
In other capacity
Certification work 340 330
Other services 225 -
Reimbursement of expenses | 83 083
2675 2253
S
Tax expense
Year eaded Year ended

31 March 2019

a) fncome wax regogiised in siciement of profie g sy
{wrrent tax

31 March 2018

Current year 80248 8130
Changes in estimates related to prior years (29 93) -
BA2 53 B139
Deferred tax
Annbutable to-
Origination and reversal of temporary differences {136 40) 3993
(136 40) 3993
Total tax expense recogrsed in the current year 72015 121.32
The above 1ax expense for the year can he reconailed (o the accounting profit as follows
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2009

Profit before tax

31 March 2018

Tax at the Indian tax rate of 34 94% (previous year 34 94%) 6dd &7 18202
Effiet of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 49 18 901
Effect of tax (benefit) / expense pertanmy to prior years 2993 (63 1)
Others 2.17 (6.640)
726:13 12].32

Income tax expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss

The tax rate used for the current vear reconciliation above (s the corporate tax rate of 34 94% (previous veur 34 94%%) payable by corporate entities in India on

famable profits under the Indian tax law

B Incoane lax expense recognised in other compeehensive meonie
Year ended

31 March 2019

Deferred tax assets/(linbilities)
Aristag et incesnre amd expenses recugaised in aefier compredensive imceme

Year ended
31 March 2018

-Remeasurement of defined benefit abligation 10.40 (2.36)
Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income 10.40 (2.36)
Bifurcation of the income tax recognised i otler comprelfieasive wicome o -
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 10410 12.36)
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss - -
10.40 (2.36)

Earnings per share

Yeur ended Year ended

31 March 2019

Basic eamings per share
Profis (loss) for basic earning per share of Rs. 10 each

31 March 2018

Profit / (loss) for the year 1,119.50 390.63
Less - divadend on convertible preference shares, net of tax 126 58 126.58
99292 273.05
Wepghred average aumber of ety shores for thavic)
Opening Balance 13,203,895 13,203,895
Effect of fresh issue of shares 3,137,568 B67.601
16,361,463 14,071,306
Basic Earmings per share (face value of Rs | (1 each) 6.07 164
Diluted earnings per share
Profie floss) for dibed earing per share of Bs. 10 each 111950 399,63
Weighted average mimber of equicy shaves for difired
Opening Balance* 13,203,895 13,203,895
Effect of fresh issue of shares® 3,734 491 1.945 820
16,938 386 15149715
Diluted earmings per share {face value of Rs 10 each) 607 1.94

preference

es) were excllided from calculation of diluted weighted average number of equity shares as their effect would have been anti-dilutive

¥ For the ,\:Jrended 31 Mareh 2019, [54.250 options and 576,923 convertible preference shares (31 March 2018, 171,750 options and 376,923 convertible
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33, Financial instruments - fair values and risk management

L Acvounting classification & Fair values
As at Asal
Level of 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Financial instruments by category and fair values Note hierarch
d FVTPL Amortised eost FyYOCi FVTPL Amortised cost I-'\r'()('ll

Financial assets
Non-current
Investments (e} 3 - 42,94 - - 42.94 -
Loans {h} 3 1,024.27 - - 010,75 .
Onher financial assets {b) 3 12097 = - 215.03 -
Current
Trade receivables (1) x! 607 35 - - 645.62 -
Cash and cash equivalents (a) 3 - £27.47 - 3 718.91 iz
Other bank balances (a) i - - - - -
Loans iby i & 4015 54 36799
Other financial assets (d) 2 6.71 280 9.51
Total = 3,125.28 - 21.80 2,910.75 -
Financial liabilities
Non-current
Borrowings (including current maturities) (&) 3 - 240222 - - 22314 -
Current
Borrowings (c) ki s 5,304 30 - - 4.008 84 -
Trade payahles (a) 3 = 6.765.49 = = 7.7123.17 =
Other financial liabilities (), {d) 2 954,38 556.20
Total . 15.426.39 - 14,609.64
Naote:

(a) Fair valuation of financial assets and liabilities with short term maturities is considered as approximate to respective carrying amount due to the short term maturities of these instruments.
() Fair value of non-current financial assets has not been disclosed as there is no signi ficant differenees between carrying value and fair value.

(e} The fair value of borrowings is based upon a discounted cash Now analysis that used the aggregate cash flows from principal and finance costs over the life of the debt and current market interest rates.,

{d) The fair value of the derivative financial instruments has been determined using valuation techniques with market observable inputs. The model meorporate various inputs include the credit quality of'
counter-parties and foreign exchange forward rates,

(e} The invesiment in subsidiary is measured ar cost less impainment losses

There are no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the vear ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018
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1L

]

(i}

(i)

Financial risk management

ftisk mapagement framewerk

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework The Company’s risk management policies are established ro
identify and analyse the risk faced by the Company. (o sel appropriate risk limits and contrals and to monitor risks and adherence to limirs. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to
effect chanpes in market conditions and Company’s activitics. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims 1o maintain discipline and construcrive control environment

in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Company’s audit commitlee oversees how management monitors compliance with Company s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in
relation 1o risk faced by the Company The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by imemal audit, Internal audit undertakes both regular and adhoc reviews of risk management controls and
procedures, the result of which are reported to audit committee.

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from [inancial mstruments
-Credit risk (see (1)),

-Liquidity risk {see {ii1)):and

-Market risk (see {iv))

Credht resk

Credit risk is the nsk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or ¢ party to a
maximum credit risk exposure and arises principally from the Company's receivable from customers and loans.

1 instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. The carrying amount of linancial assets represents the

Treli pecenables and [eans

The Company’s retail husiness is pre-dominantly on cash and carry basis which is largely through credit-card collections. The credit risk on such collections 15 minimal, since they are primarily owned by
customers’ card issuing banks. The Company has adopted a policy of dealing with only credit worthy counterparties in case of institutional cusiomers and the credit risk exposure for institutional customers is
managed by the Company by credit worthiness checks. The Company also carries credit risk on lease deposits with landlords for store propertics taken on leases, for which agreements are signed and property
possessions timely taken for store operations. The nisk relating to refunds after store shut down is managed through successful negatiations or appropriate legal actions, where necessary.

The Company's expenence of delinguensies and customer disputes have been minimal, Further, Trade and other receivables consist of a large number of customers, across geographies within India. hence, the

Company is not exposed to concentration nsks.

st cned casit cquvalenty
The Company holds cash and cash cquivalents of Rs, 827,47 lakhs at 31 March 2019 (31 March 2018 Rs. 718.91). The cash and cnsh equivalents are held with scheduled banks

Litpisehity risk

Liquidity nisk 15 the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilitics that arc settled by delivering cash or another financial assets. The
Company’s approach to manage liquidity 1s to have sufficient hquidity to meet its liabilites when they are due, under both normal and stressed circumstances. without incurring unacceptable losses or risking

damage to the Company’s reputation.

Management manages the liquidity risk by monitoring cash flow forecasts on a periodic basis and maturity profiles of financial assets and habilities, This monitering takes into account the accessibility of cash
and cash equivalents and additional undrawn financing facilities. The Company will continue to consider various borrowings of leasing options to maximize liquidity and supplement cash requirements as

MECCSSATY.
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Expostire to liguidity risk

The tollowing are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and
undiscounted, and include contractual interest payments.

31 March 2019 Contractual cash Mow
Total Less than 1 1-5 vears More than 5
year vears
Non derivative financial liabilities
-Borrowings(including current maturities) 7.706.52 6.296 87 1.409.65 -
-Trade payables 6,763.49 6,765,49 - -
-Capital creditors 105.69 105.69 - -
-Salaries, wages and bonus pavable 738 56 738.56 - -
-Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 11013 110,13 - -
15,426.39 14,016.74 1,409.65 -

Derivative financial liabilities
-Forward contracts

31 March 2018 Contractual cash flow
Tatal Less than 1 1-5 years More than §
vear years
Non derivative [inancial liabilities
-Borrowings(including current maturities) 6,33027 5.221.09 1,109.18 -
-Trade payahles 772317 772317 - -
-Capital creditors 104,52 104.52 - -
-Salaries. wages and bonus payable 343,99 34399 - -
-Interest acerued but not due on borrowings 107.68 107.68 - -
14,609.63 13,500.45 1,109.18 -

Derivative financial liabilities
~-Forward contracts - i i =

(iv)  Market fisk

a) Product price risk

In a potentially inflationary economy, the Company expects periodical price increases across its retail product lines. Product price increases
which are not in line with the levels of customers’ discretionary spends. may affect the business/retail sales volumes. Since the Company
operates in luxury category, the demand is reasonably inelastic to changes in price. However, the Company continually momtor and
compares prices of its products in other developed markets as its customers tend to compare prices across markets. In the event that prices
deviate significantly unfavorably from the markets, the Company negotiates with its principals for change of prices. The Company also
manages the risk by offering judicious product discounts to retail customers to sustain volumes. The Company negotiates with its vendors
for purchase price rebates such that the rebates substantially absorb the product discounts offered to the retail customers. This helps the
{omnanv protect itself from siemificant nroduct marvin losses
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Inilerest rate risk

The Campany is exposed (o interest rate risk because funds are borrowed at both fixed and floating interest rates Interest rate risk is measured by using the cash
flow sensitivity for changes in variable interest rate. The borrowings of the Company are principally denominated in rupees with a mix of fixed and floating rates of
interest. The risk is managed by the Company by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings The exposure of the Company’s
horrowing 1o interest rale changes as reported to the management at the end of the reporting period are as follows

Asat As at

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Fixed rate borrowings 2476.21 1973 16
Floating rate borrowings 5,230 31 3,357.12
7,706,512 6,330.2%

Tnterest rafe senstividy aiuvaes
A reasonably possible change of 0.50 % in interest rates at the reporting dare would have affecied the profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis has

been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for Hoating rate liabilities sssuming the amount of hability ourstanding on the year-end was outstanding
fior the whole wear.

Profit { {Loss) before tax
P the year ended 31 March 2009 Strengthening Weankening

Interest rate (0.5% movement ) (26.1%) 26.15

For the year cinded 311 March 208

Interest rate {0.5% movement ) {16 79} 1679

Currency risk

The Company s exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is mismatch between the currencies in which purchases are denominated and the functional
currency of the Company. The currencies in the which the Company is exposed 1o risk are CHF, USD, EUR. SGD. The Company evaluates this risk on a regular
basis and appropriate risk mitigating steps are taken, inchuding but not limited, entering into forward contracts.

Fxpostere do cirrency risk

The summary quantitative data about the Company's exposure to currency nsk as reported to the management of the Company is as follows

31 March 2019 CHF usp SGD ELUR
Trade payables 1.595 258 1838 5.46 28 8
Net exposure of recogmsed financial Bability 1.595 25 IR 38 580 28.80
31 March 2018

Trade pavables 2,1560.69 7360 7148 3312
Less Forward contract autstanding (687 89) = -
Net exposure of recogrised linancial liability 2,160 69 43 71 7148 32z

Kopustuiviey amafysis

A rensonably possible sirengthening {weakening) of CHF, USD, SGD, EUR against INR (2) at the end of the year. would have affected the measurement of
financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amount shown below This analysis assumes that all other
variables. in particular interes! rates. remain consiant and ignores any impact on forecast purchases

Profit / {Loss) (before tax) Equity (et of 1ax)

31 March 2019 Strengthening Weakening s hening Weakening
CHF {1% movement) (1595} 1595 [10.38) 1038
SGD (1% movement) {006y 006 [(r04) 004
EUR (1% movement) (s ] 029 (1% 019
USD (1% movement) (0.18) 018 012 012
31 March 2018

CHF (1% movement) (21.61) 1181 {14 06) 14.06
SGD {19 movement) (032) 032 {21y a1
EUR {1% movement) (071 071 {047) 047
LU'SD (1% movement) (138 732 4 76) 476

CHF; Swiss Franc USD: US Dollar, 3GD; Singapore Dollar, EUR- Euro

Capital Management

Risk mcweigenednt

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the
business The management monitors the return on capital The Company manitors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt' to ‘total equity’. For this purpose,
adjusted net debt is defined as toral borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents snd other bank balances Equity comprises all components of equity (as shown in
the Balance Sheet).

The Company's adjusted net debt 1o equity ratio was as follows

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Total liabilities 16,562.69 1582122
Less: cash and cash equivalents {827.47) (718 91y
Adjusted net debt 15,735.22 15,102 31
Toral equity 13.171.27 9 164 06
Adjusted net debt to equity ratio 1.19 1.65

(i) Sivicemdy pew recognized al the enel of repeiing period

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Curnulative preference dividend not recogmised on 12% cumulative 553 12 426 54
Compulsory convertible preference shares, 14% cumulaiive compulsory
Convertible preference shares including dividend distribution 1zves
Toral 553.12 426,54
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35 Emplovee benefits

i As at As al
1. Assets and lubilines relatng to employee benefits 31 March 3019 31 March 2018
New-current
Liabalatv for grauite 6l 33
Laabileiv for compensated absences B
142.24
Current
Liakility Tor gratuaty 32 -
Laabnliiy [or compensaled abscnces 402 2 filr
T.14 1.69
24576 144.93

For detasls about the related emplovee benelit expenses. refer to note no 17

M. Defined benefit plan - Grawuin

The emplovees’ gratuity fund scheme mamaged by Life Insurance Corporntion of India 1 a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation is determined based on sctuarial valuation
useng the Projected Unit Credit Method. which recognises cach penod of service as giving nise Lo additional unil of cmplevee benefit entitleiment and measures cach unit separntchy 1o build
wp the final obligation. The Company made annual contributians w the LIC of India of o0 amount advesed by the LIC

The above defined benelit plan exposes. the Company Lo followine nsks:

Tnivrest rave risk
The dielined benelit cbhigation calculaled wses a discount rate based on government bonds. 1f bond vields fall, the defined benelit obligation will tead to inercasc

Serdaary nflarient risk

Higher than cxpected inereases in salary will increase the defingd benefit oblizntion

I mopraphte prst:

Ttus is the nisk of vanobility of results due 1o unsvstematic nedure of decrements tha include mortality, withdrawal, disabihiy and retrement. The offet of these deerements on the
defincd benefit obligation 15 not strught forvard and depends upon the combination of salary increase, discount rate and vesting enicria It 1s important net to overstate withdrawals
because in the financial analysis the retirement benelit of o short earcer emplovee typacally costs fess por vear ns compared 10 o Jony service amplovee.

The Company actwvely momsters how the dursion and the expeeted vield of the ivasimenis are matchimg the expected eash outflows mnsing from the emplovee benefit obligonons. The
Company has not changed the processes used to manage s fisks from provious penods. The funds are managed by specialised team of Lifi | Corporation of Tndia.

ab Fumding
Girauity is a funded benefit plan for qualifving emphoces 100 of the plan assets are mimaged by LIC The assets monage are hughly liguid m noture and the Company does not expect

amy signilicant liquidity risks
The expected contribution e defined benelit plan m 240192020 15 ngignificant.

b Reconciftarion of preseas value of defined bene e o ligation 3 .\!nn:hl;:}:; 3 M.nr:h;;llst
Balanee ai the beginning of the vear V987 YR 30
Benefits paid (1147 (16508
Current service cost 2240 2122
Interest cost 748 7.87
Actuarial (uams) /_losses on expericnce sdiustments reeovnssed in other comprchensive income 2852 [RIECY)
Balance at the end of the vear 147.21 99.87

) Reconcilialion of the presomt valice of plan assets 5 ““ﬂl';; Iu'; 1 M.rrhr;lal:
Balance at the heginning of the vear 3837 4694
Contributicns paid into e 2lan 5.23
Interest Lncome 187 4.04)
Benelits pasd {1047 [ LA
Betum on plan assets recegnised m ather comprehensive income (1.23] {3487
Balance at the end of the vear 33.87 38.32

i 5 Year ended Year ended
Expense recognised o

dy Expense recognised in projit or foss 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Current service cost 2180 Lz
Inlerest Income (287) [CXIY]
Iierest cosi 7.49 787

1742 509

e) Remeastreaicts recogmsed i offer comprefiensne o i Year caded

31 Mareh 2019 31 March 2018

Actuanial (gam) / loss on defined benalit obluzation R 52 (1064}
Returm on plan ascets less / {preater) than discount rae 1.33 387
219,75 1677}

N Plan quvets
LU0 of the plan assets arc managed by LIC

As at Asat

Arrarawm’ R i
2 p 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
DXiscount rate { per anmum T30 pa Hi pa
Future salary wrowth raie (per annum) S00tapa 5.00% p.a.
Retirement age 38 vears 38 veary

A

ing, fuiure litv-are based on [ndian Assured Lives Mortaling (IALM) ¢ 2006-08) rates.
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1.

v,

a)

b)

o)

dj

e

Semsvity anal sy
Reasonably possible chanacs at the reperting dote Lo ane of e relevant sctsaral assumptions. holding cther assumptions constant. would have affeeted the defined benefit obligation by

tl amounts shown below.

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Inerease Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate 4 1 meoscment b 11912} 1664 (1318 11494
| B {17.05) 1331 11223)

Future snlary growih rate (1% movement |

The ahove sensitivity analysis are based on o change m an assumption whike holding all other assumplions canstant In practice. this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the
assumptions may be comelated When caleulating the sensitv ity of the defined berclil obligation ta signaficant actuarial pssumptions ihe same methods fpm.scnt value of defined benefil
abligation culculated with the projected wnit credit method a1 the end of the reporting penodi has been applicd as when calvulaling the defined benefat Labality recognised in the bakanes
sheet

The methods and 1vpes of assumptions used in preparing the sensiti ity analy sis did ot change compared 10 he pror penod

Fopected henefit pavments
Undiscounied amount of expected benefil pavinents for nest |0 vears are as follaw s:

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Within | vear 431 ERE)
12 vear 415 an
23 vear 413 509
o vear 419 441
4-5 vear 411 (I8
5- 10l vears W 4817
Defined contrbution plons

The Company makes contribution. determined as a percentage of emplovee salanes., in respeet of qualifymg emplovees towards Provident fund, which is a defined contribution plan The
Company has po obligaton other than o make the specificd contnbulions. The Company: has recognised Rs 106 10 dprevious year Rs. 300 06 dunng the vear as expense owands
contribation to these plarns

Share based payments

Blescripian of vhare-hased pavment avrangemeni
Asal 31 March 20149, the Company has the feliowug share-based poyment arrangements.

Employee Stock Cpriow Seheme (ogertv-seniled

I the Extraordinan General Meeting held on 10,03 301 14. the shareholders approved the (ssuc ol oplions nol exceeding 230,000 options under the Scheme titled *Ethos Emplovee Stack
Cptson Plan - 201 3"
The ESOP allows the issuc of options (o dligible emplovess of the Company. Each option comprises oae underly ing equiy share

As per the Sehome, the Compensation Commitiee sranis the options Lo the craplovees deemed chigible The exercise price of cach option shall be equal 1o the "Markes Price as defined in
ihe Scheme The options granted vest as follows. Oplions may be cxcreised wathin 3 vears of vesting

1. 50% of the optsons granted 1o the szloeted emplavee shall vest on 1st October 2017 in case there 15 continuation of s service bl the date of vesting.

2. 50 on the first day of the financial vear sub te the achi ntof hilling of Bs. 30000 lakhs n any financeal vear by the Company, subject o the contmuniion of service till the
daie of vesting However there shall reomaun a gap of ounimum oné vear between the date of gront and the date of vesting under this elause The compensation eammutiee shall declare such
date as and when it is nggered

The Compeny has i its Compensation Commitice mesting on (4 08 24114 granted outstanding 3,304 options (o emplovee of the holding Company . The above options have been issued by
the Compensation Commiltes i accordance with the terms & conditions of the “Ethos Emploves Stock Option Plan - 2013

Reconcthation of onistanding shore option
Particulars During the year ended During the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Options Weighted Oprions Weighted
[numbers) average exercise | (numbers]  average exercise
price per aption price per oplion
(s} (Rs.}
Ethos Employee Stock Optien Scheme - 2013
Option outstanding at the begimning of the vear 171.750 120 128000 120
Grranted duning the year - - - 5,
Vested duning the year . 5 - -
Excrcised during the vear - - 21,250 120
Lapsed during the vear 17,500 120 25,000 -
Opoons outsianding at ihe end of the year 154,250 120 17750 120
Opuioas available for grant at the end of year - - - P
Options exercisable at the end of the vear = - - -
Mo of shares arigine ou of the options outstanding 154.250 120 171750 120
Ethos Employee Stock Option Scheme - 2013
Orptaon otstanding at the begmnuing of the year 3500 120 3500 120
ranted during the vear - = - -
Vested during the vear - - - -
Exercised duning the vear = = s 2
Lapsed during the vear - -
Owpteons cutstanding nt the end of the year 3500 120 3500 1200
Owpteans available for grant at the end ol vewr = - x =
Dipluons exereisable at the end of the year - - . "
Mo of shares arising owt of the optivas oulslanding 3,500 L1200 3500 1200

The options putstanding as o1 31 March 2019 have an exercise price of Bs. 120 (3] March 2018 Rs 120 and a weghied averape remaining contraclual life m the range of 11640 156
vears (31 March 2008 216 10 236 vears)

Fexpense recogmzed in stavement of profil o fexs

Asmt As at

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Ex ansing from equity-sctiled share based pavment transection {inch Lsons lapsed duning the vear) (781 178

The fair vadue of the oprions has heen determined wnder e Black-Scheles mode! ard the inpis wsed in the seasiremens of the grani-dare jair

As at As at

Assumptions 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Fair value at grant daie 35 34/56.08 33 54056 %
Share price at grand date 12¢.00 120,00
Fxercise price 120 ity | 26000
sk Free Interest Rote-KRLI/KRL2/Ethes 7 60%J7 60%, 7 60% T 0%,
ted Lific tyears) -RRLIKRL 2 Eihos 4564 16 45604 106

ted Annual Velauli of Shares 4060 % AR et

ted dividend vicld (i ) 1:58% | 58%

wpeeted volanlity s been based on an evaluation of the hisioreal velanlioe of the Company s share price. particularly over the histoncal penod commensurate with the expected e
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7.

Contingent liabilities, commirments and other matiers
{ tea thae extent nol provided for)

Cleimis agamst the Compeny ol ek vledged as debrs, ainder despute

As ar As al
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
a) Income Tax maners 15.53 -
) Civil and Consumer matters - 054
€) Value Added Tax matters 1,000.71 -
1.016.24 0.54
Avwears of fived commidative dividond on 2% canelaiive 58302 426 54

compulsory  comernble  preference shares. 4% casnilaitve
compatbsory converiihle preforence shares inchding - dividend
dictribartion faves

© IHmR R

-Estimated amount of contracts remarming to be executed on capital 188 96 6E 31

accouni and not pravided for (et of advances)

-amount payable under nen- cancellable leases 7,241 8 711258
743076 7,178.89

During the vear 2011-2012, pursuant (o the visit of the officers of Directorate general of Central excise intelligence (DGCET) in the premuses of the Company on
18 August 2011, the Company had reversed the nput service fax credit of Rs. 170 lakhs m its service tax retum which was availed by the Company in previous
years. The above amount was reversed as per the epimion of the officials of DGCEL The Company, on the basis of legal opinion obtained. is of the view that the
Company is entitled to this input serviee tax eredit. Since. the amount was reversed under protest and without prejudice 1o the legal rights of the Company, the
Company has shown the above amount of Rs. | 70 lakhs reversed as claum recervable under the head “Lang term loans and advances” During the financial year
2012-13, the Company had received a notice from DGCE] whereby, the Company had been called upon to show cause as to why service tax amounting to Rs.
563 lukhs which had been shon paid and CENVAT credit amounting to Rs. 242 77 lakhs wrongly availed should not he demanded and recavered. The Company
had filed the reply to the show cause notice with the Commissioner-Central Excise and Service Tax, Chandigarh The authority has confirmed the demand except
Rs, 6 63 lakhs Further . the authonty has imposed a panalty of Rs. 242.77 lakhs. Being aggrieved agamst the order of Commissioner- Central Excise and Service
Tax. the Company has preferred appeal wath CESTAT and the matter 5 sub-judice wath CESTAT, Chandigarh Due to the pending adjudicaton of the appeal,
liability on this account has not been provided m the accounts

In addition, the Company is subject to lezal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business. The Company's management does not
expect that these legal actions, when ultimately concluded and determmed. will have a matenial and adwerse effect on the Company’s resulis of operations or
financial condibon

Pursuunt to recent judgement by the Hon'ble Supreme Court dated 18 February 2019, it was held that basic wages, for the purpose of provident fund, i inchade
special allowances which are commen for all emplovees However, there 15 uncertainty with respect to the applicability of the judgement and peried from which
the same applies. Owing to the aforesaid uncertamty and pending clarification from the authorities in this regard, the Company has not recognised any provision
for the periods prior 1o 28 February 2019, Further, management also believes that the impact of the same on the Company will not be materal

Relared parties

Refated partics and nomee of refaed par refationsig, where cominul extsty

Description of Relationship

Holding / Ultimate Holding Company

bsiciary Body Corp

Mame of the Party

KDDL Linuted (KDDL)
Cogmition Dgatal LLP

Chiber refated paries with whom iransactions have uken place

Description of Relationship

Fellow Subsidiaries

Entmes ovir which sigmificant influence 15 exercised by the Key
Managemen! Personnel

Entities over which significant mfluence 15 exsraised by relative of
the Key Management Persannel

Key Management Persannel and relabives

Directors

Relatives of Dirzeior

Name of the Party

Mahen Distributon Limited
Pylana S A

Saboo Coanngs Prnivate Limited
VBL Innovanons Private Limited
Vardhan Properties & Investment Limited

Dream Digital Technology Private Limited (DOTPL)*
Saboo Ventures LLP
Saboo Housing Projects LLP

Mr Y Saboo (Managing director)
Mr Pranav Saboo (CEO)
Relatives of Managing director
Mr. R K Saboo

Mrs. Anuradha Saboo

Mrs. Usha Saboo

Key Management Personmel
Mr O Rajn Sebkhar
Mr. Anil Dhiman

Mr. Anil Khanna
Mr. N Subramanian
Mr. Sundeep Kumar
Mrs. Neelhma Topathi
Mr. Dilpreet Singh
Mr. Mohamun Aliaf
Mr. Ragat Kakar

Mrs Alka Khanna (Wife of Mr Aril Khanna)
Mrs Poonam Prakash (Sister of Mr Anil Khanna)
Mr Apoory Tripalhl (Son of Mrs Neelma Tripat)

= DDTPL was a public limited company 6l 01 June 2018 With effect from 62 June 2016 DDTPL s now & private limited compary
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1.

Trcutsiae tins with related parties

As at As at
Nature of transactions 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
1) Purchase of goods 1.593.39 1,129.38
KDDL Limited & 0.24
- Pylama 5A 1,593.39 1,125 14
b} Sales of goods T7.43 1.028.89
+  Saboo Coanngs Limiuted - 008
- KDDL Limited 70 9.04
- Mahen Dastribunon Limited - 1.00% 28
- Saboo Ventures LLP 3807 207
- Mr. R K Sahoo 1266 8.00
Me Y Saboo 009
- Mr. Pranav Saboo 033
) Emploves benefits 24294 69.61
Shoset-term emplovee benefits
- Mrs. Anuradha Saboo 636 6,02
- Mr Raja Sckhar G183 55.08
- Mr Anil Dhiman 685 &5l
- Mr. Pranav Saboo 13520 -
d) Interest expenses 7L12 5239
- Mr. R K Saboo B.37 875
- Wardhan Properties & Investment Limuied (B H 17.10
- Dream Digial Technolozy Private Limited 1225 976
- Mr Y Saboo 37 244
- Saboo Ventures LLP 4000 14.14
- Saboo Housing Projects LLP 070 015
- Mr Aml Khanna 118 =
- Mirs. Alka Khanna 067 -
- Mrs. Poonam Prakash (B 3
- M Usha Dewvi Saboo 134 -
) Rent expense 14.50 13.26
- KDDL Limited 757 1326
- Mr Y Saboo 693 -
1) Remt Receved 15.00 16.29
- KDDL Linuted - 1770
- [Dream Digital Technology Private Limited - o.l4
- Mahen Distribution Lumited 1500 B 45
g) Publicity and advertisement T27.70 7148
- Dream Digital Technology Private Limied - 6548
- KDDL Linuted 600 (0
- Cognitien Digital LLP 697 57 .
- Pylania SA 2413 -
) Revmbursement of expenses incurred on behalf of Ethos Limied 130.18 15.39
- KDDL Limied 13018 1251
= Dream Digital Technology Poivate Limited - 188
1) Reaint received for 485,55 504
- KDDL Limited 573
- Dream Digital Technology Privete Linuted * - 1 94
- Mahen Distribution Limated 0.58 097
- Cogpition Digital [ LP 460,58 ¥
- Pylamia A 24,39 3
1) Sale of Property, plant and equiprent 0.21 -
- KDDL Limited 021 -
k) Purchase of Property, plant and equipment 46,31 -
- KDDL Limited 4190 -
- Pylana SA 4.41 -
1) Consultancy fees paid .64 -
- Apoorv P Tripathi { Adwocate) 264 -
m) Director Fees 33,27 16.80
Mr Y Saboo 4 50 375
-Mr Anil Khanna 878 490
-Mr N Subramanian 825 4.30
-Mr. Rajat Kakar - 1.65
-Mr Sundeep Kumar 386 110
=Mrs Neelima Trpathi 0&7 110
-Mr. Dilpreet Singh 386
=Mr. Mohaimin Aliaf 305 -
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As at Asm
Nature of transactions 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
) Loan taken - 1,067.00
- Mr RK Saboo - -
= Wardhan Properties & Investment Limited - 3000
- Dream Digital Technolomy Private Limited 50,00
Mr. Y Saboo - 100,00
- Saboo Ventures LLP - 400,00
- Saboo Housing Progects LLP . 700
o) Loan pad T 650,00
- Vardhan Properties & Invesiment Limuted - G000
- Mr Y Saboo - 5000
- Mr R K Saboo TOAH -
p) Investment made durnng the year - 4294
Cowgmnon Digial LLP 429
q) 12% Cumulanive redeemable preference shares redee med - 300,00
- KDDL Limued . 300,10
r) Interest on | 2% redeemable preference shares - 14,40
- KDDL Limited - 1440
5} Financial guarantee experses 0.7% 0.50
- KDDL Limited 075 050
1) Equity shares issued / convertad 17.12 196.83
- KDDL Limuted 1712 171 98
= Mr Y Saboo = 10,59
- Mr Anl Khanna - 063
- Mr R K Saboo - .09
Mrs Anuradha Saboo - 227
= M N Subramanin - 227
* Including fesh equity shares allotted & 12% cumulative convertible preference shares 136,363
u) Share prenuum receved 482.87 142867
= KDDL Limited 482,87 217802
Mr. R K Saboo 90,91
Mr Y Saboo 107 40
Mrs Anurndha Saboo 2273
- Mr Ami Khanna - 6,88
- Mr N Subramanian - nni
* Including premum on equity shares allotted & on conversion of
12% cumulative convertible preference shares
v, Chgsianaing halances ax ar year cod
Asat As ot
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Payables 451.39 656,69
- Dream Digital Technology Private Lirited - 1238
KDDL Limitzd 166.25 41,64
- Pylama SA 10071 63267
- Saboo Ventures LILP 588 -
- Cognition Digital LLP 17555 =
Recenvables | Advances 41777 515,78
- Mahen Distnbution Linuted 412.77 51575
Investments made 42.94 4294
- Cagnibon Dhgital LLP 4294 4294
Secunty deposit given 6,77 677
= KDDL Limmed a77 677
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As at As at
= | Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
12% Cumulative compulsory convertible preference shares 201,00 200.00
- KDDL Limitexd 2500 2500
- VBL Innovations Private Limited 26,00 26.00
- Dream Digital Technology Private Limuted 1000 1000
- Mr R K Saboo LIREH 6000
= Mr ¥ Saboo 25.00 25.00
- Mrs. A Saboo A5 00 55.00
Equity Share Capstal 1,336,760 1.319.64
N - Mahen Distribution Limuted 229 32 22932
- KDDL Limited 103947 1.022,35
- Mr Y Ssboo 125] 12.51
- Mr € Rae Sekhar | 06 .06
- Mr R K Saboo 9.09 909
- M A Siboo 2.7 .27
- Saboo Ventures LLP 3227 3227
- Vandhan Propertes & Invesument Limited 5.0 500
- Mr N, Subramaman S14 514
- Mr. Aml Khanna 0.63 (163
- Unsecured loans 634.15 637.00
- Dream Dignal Technology Private Limited 100,00 100,00
- Wardhan Properiies & lnvestmen Linuted 10.00 10.00
Mr R K Saboo - T0.00
Mr ¥ Sahoo - 50 00
- Saboo Ventures LLP 40000 400 00
- Saboo Houwsing Projects LLP 700 700
= Mr. Aml Khanna 2000 -
- Mrs. Alka Khanna 5.l -
- Mrs. Poonam Prakash 6.54 E
— - Mis. Lisha Dewvi Saboo 83,00 -
Deemed capital conmbution 50,51 50,51
KDDL Limited - | 2% cumulanve redeemnable preference shares ELAEY 3600
- KDDL Limited - financial guarantze 14.51 14.51
Employes benefits TL50 -
Shaprt-term crajifovee bene fits
- Mr. Raja Sckhar 3150 -
- Mr. Pranav Saboo 5000 -
= Cuaraniees taken by the company 1713172 17,292.24
- KDDL Limited 5929.18 5.969.31
Mr. R K Saboo 4,979 18 501931
= Mr Y Saboo 5.929 18 5,969 31
- Mrs. Usha Saboo 294 18 13431
Y. Tewmes and conditions
All transacnions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in orm’s length wansactions and wilkin the ordinary
course of business
38, Segment information

The Company 15 primarily engaged in the business of trading and sale of watches and related accessones to retail customers within India,
The Board of Directors of the Company, who have been identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM). evaluatz the Company's performance
and allocate resources based on the analysis of vanous performance indicaters of the Company as a single unit. Accordingly, there 15 no reporiable segment or any
entily wade disclosures which are applicable to the Company

. Additional information- Recomciling Gross Sales (including billing under consignment arvangemcent and Sales tax / Goods and services tax) with met
sales:

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018|

Sales {gross including Sales tax / Goods and services tix) 51,356.82 42,021 47
Less: Sales tax/ GST {1.23987) [6,48547)
Nel sales 44,116,985 35,536.00

The Company's sales model comprises of outnight sales of purchased poods to customers as well as items placed on a consignment basis with the Company.
though billed by the Company. As a revenue recognition policy, consignment sales are not pant of the Company’s sales in the Statement of Profit and Loss since
only the related comnussion income forms part of the other operaing moome.




ETHOS LIMITED
Notes to the standalone fimancinl statements for the year ended 31 Muarch 2009

TAN amennis are in Incian Rupees, except for shave daa, and if stheriise siatedy

40, The Company has taken a number of showroams, warehouses under opperanng lease arrangements, with an option of renewal al the ead of the fease term and
escalation clauses in some of the cuses. Lease term ranges from 6 months to 9 years. Lease payments (gross of reimbursements) charged dunng the year to the
Statement of Profit and Loss ageragate {excluding taxes as applicable) Rs. 3217 1] (previous year ended 31 March 2018 - Rs 2,553 75) [including Rs 175 54

towards cancellable lease (previous vear Rs 264 44))

Future minimum lease payments due
Within one year

Later than one year and nat later than five years
More than 5 vears

Total

As at As at

31 March 2019 A1 March 2018
203426 1.B39.25
444008 4.229.60

757 57 1.043.72
7.241.80 701257

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR& Co. LLP
Cierrse recf Accommenty
No 101248W/ W-100022

Parmer
Membership No. - 098297

Place: Mew Delh
Dxate: 04 May 2019

#7ur and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Ethos Limited

Anil Khanna
Direcior
DN 00012232

Marragung Dircetor
DIN 00012158

njd S ? ranav Shankar Saboo

¥ i Financiol @ffeer Chigf bxecuive Officer
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Colvpany Secretary

Place: New Delhi
[Jate 04 May 20019







